
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
Thursday, February 25, 2016 

7:30 p.m. 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
680 Park Avenue 
Idaho Falls, Id  83402 
Thank you for your interest in City Government. If you wish to express your thoughts on a matter listed below, it is best to 
contact Councilmembers by email or personally before the meeting. Be aware that an amendment to this Agenda may be 
made upon passage of a motion that states the reason for the amendment and the good faith reason that the Agenda 
item was not included in the original Agenda posting. City Council Meetings are live streamed at www.idahofallsidaho.gov, 
then archived on the city website. If you need communication aids or services or other physical accommodations to 
participate or access this meeting please contact City Clerk Kathy Hampton at 612-8414 or the ADA Coordinator Lisa Farris 
at 612-8323 as soon as possible and they will make an effort to accommodate your needs. 
  
1. Call to Order. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Public Comment.  Members of the public are invited to address the City Council regarding matters 
that are not on the Agenda or already noticed for a public hearing. When you address the Council, please state 
your name and address for the record and please limit your remarks to three (3) minutes. The Mayor may 
exercise discretion to decide if and when to allow public comment on an agenda item that does not include a 
public hearing. If the Mayor determines your comments may be made later in the meeting, she will let you 
know when you may make your comments. Please note that matters currently pending before the Planning 
Commission or Board of Adjustment which may be the subject of a pending enforcement action, or which are 
relative to a City personnel matter are not suitable for public comment. 
 
4.  Consent Agenda.  Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of any member 
of the Council for separate consideration.  
 

A. Items from the City Clerk: 
 
 1) Approval of Minutes from the January 25, 2016, Work Session, and January 26, 2016, Council 

Meeting.  
  
 2) Approval of License Applications, all carrying the required approvals. 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To approve all items on the Consent Agenda according to the 
recommendations presented. 
 

5. Regular Agenda. 
  

A. Community Development Services 
 

1) Sign Code Ordinance:  At the February 5, 2016 City Council meeting staff presented a revised 
sign code for consideration.  At the meeting the Council requested further consideration for 
allowing electronic message center signs on Broadway between Yellowstone and Memorial.  At the 
February 22 work session staff presented language which would permit electronic message centers 
as wall signs with a maximum of 40 square feet and only when they do not cover any building 
features which are of historical architectural significance.  The ordinance will also require 
administrative review by the Historic Preservation Commission to ensure that historic elements 
are preserved.  

http://www.idahofallsidaho.gov/


 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To consider the Ordinance on the second reading and that it be read by 
title or to approve the Sign Ordinance under the suspension of the rules requiring three complete 
and separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary (or reject the 
Ordinance). 
 

B. Idaho Falls Power   
 
1) Resolution Adopting the Financial Stability and Creditworthiness Policy:  This policy combines 
the utility’s previous Risk Management and Rate Stabilization Fund policies into one 
comprehensive policy. An updated policy is necessary given that the previous policies were 
established to comply with bond ordinances that are no longer relevant since Idaho Falls Power 
fully retired its debt.   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To approve the resolution adopting the Financial Stability and 
Creditworthiness Policy and give authorization for the Mayor to sign the documents (or take other 
action deemed appropriate). 
 

C. Public Works 
 
1) Idaho Transportation Department State/Local Agreement – Intersection of Holmes Avenue 
and First Street Project:  For consideration is a State/Local Construction Agreement with the Idaho 
Transportation Department and accompanying Resolution with respect to the Intersection of 
Holmes Avenue and First Street project. This agreement requires City financial contribution 
towards the entire project at a match rate of 7.34% for an estimated total of $29,657.00. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To adopt the resolution, approve of the State/Local Construction 
agreement for the intersection of Holmes Avenue and First Street project, and give authorization 
for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents (or take other action deemed 
appropriate). 
 
2) Idaho Transportation Department State/Local Agreement – Intersection of Bellin Road and 
Grandview Drive Project:  For consideration is a State/Local Construction Agreement with the 
Idaho Transportation Department and accompanying Resolution with respect to the Intersection 
of Bellin Road and Grandview Drive project. This agreement requires City financial contribution 
towards the entire project at a match rate of 7.34% for an estimated total of $10,124.00. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To adopt the resolution, approve of the State/Local Construction 
agreement for the intersection of Bellin Road and Grandview Drive project, and give authorization 
for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents (or take other action deemed 
appropriate). 
 
3) Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Primary Treatment Upgrades Project Final Design 
Agreement for Final Professional Engineering Services and Task Order 14-03:  For consideration is 
Task Order 14-03 for Final Design Engineering Services with Murray, Smith and Associates, Inc., 
associated with the WWTP Primary Treatment Upgrades project. The task order scope of work 
includes providing design and bid documents to construct a new primary clarifier, providing for 
existing clarifier upgrades, a primary clarifier flow split structure, and various other primary 
treatment upgrades. Total costs to the City for this Task Order is $1,060,000. 
   



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To approve Task Order 14-03 in an amount of $1,060.000.00 for Final 
Design Engineering Services with Murray, Smith and Associates, Inc.; and give authorization for the 
Mayor and City Clerk to sign necessary documents (or take other action deemed appropriate). 
 
4) Right of Way Vacation Request –Murray Street and a portion of Milligan Road:  Eagle Rock 
Engineering, on behalf of the adjacent property owners, has requested the vacation of Murray 
Street and a portion of Milligan Road. The Murray Street right-of- way is underdeveloped. It does 
not, and cannot, connect to another roadway to the east and is not necessary for access to 
adjoining properties. Needed right-of-way is being dedicated as part of the Milligan Commercial 
Plaza subdivision to construct a cul-de-sac at the end of Milligan Road. The utilities have requested 
their existing utilities be protected. To accomplish this, the vacation documents will need to 
include similar language as was used in the vacation of Milligan Road south to Bridgeport Avenue. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To authorize the City Attorney to prepare documents needed to 
accomplish the vacations of Murray Street and a portion of Milligan Road (or take other action 
deemed appropriate). 
 

D. Fire Department 
 
 1) Purchase Requisition Approval for New Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) and Records 

Management System (RMS):  During the FY 2016 budget process an amount of $124,349.72 was 
approved by City Council as the Fire Department’s share of the expenses for replacing the current 
CAD and RMS. Work has been ongoing to complete this project, and the Bonneville County 
Sheriff’s Office has paid for the project to date. The Sheriff’s Office has submitted an invoice to the 
Idaho Falls Fire Department for our share. 

 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION:  To approve the purchase requisition to reimburse the Bonneville 

County Sheriff’s Office for the consolidated Computer Aided Dispatch and Records Management 
System in the amount of $124,349.72 (or take other action deemed appropriate).  

 
6. Motion to Adjourn. 
 





JANUARY 25, 2016 
 

1 
 

The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting (Council Work 
Session), Monday, January 25, 2016, at the City Council Chambers in the City Annex Building 
located at 680 Park Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho at 3:00 p.m. 
 
There were present: 
 
Mayor Rebecca L. Noah Casper 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
Councilmember Michelle Ziel-Dingman 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
Councilmember John Radford 
Councilmember David Smith 
 
Also present: 
 
Chris Fredericksen, Public Works Director 
Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Director 
Lisa Farris, Grant Administrator 
Other available Department Directors and staff 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
Mayor Casper called the meeting to order at 3:03 p.m. with Council Reports.  
 
Councilmember Hally recommended the Council review a recent article in the Post Register 
regarding foregone money. He had no items to report.  
Councilmember Marohn stated in conjunction with the Department of Defense there will be 
upcoming anniversary veteran’s celebration with two (2) events happening each year for the 
next three (3) years.  
Councilmember Smith had no items to report. 
Councilmember Ehardt had no items to report. 
Councilmember Ziel-Dingman stated she recently attended a conference regarding Civitans 
where Idaho Falls was recognized as one of the best cities to work with the Civitans. She also 
stated Idaho Falls will be hosting the 34th annual Bankruptcy Seminar in February, 2016. 
Councilmember Radford stated the Library Board will be presenting the Annual Report at the 
February 8, 2016, Work Session. He indicated the Library offers free training on Office 
software applications. 
 
Mayor Casper reported on the following:  
 
 -City Officials Day at the Capital – January 28, 2016. Mayor Casper requested Council 
attention to specific bills regarding Minimum Wage, Cyber Security and Critical Infrastructure, 
and Urban Renewal. She stated information on legislature is provided from a variety of 
sources, including the Chamber of Commerce, Eastern Idaho Technical College (EITC), 
Association of Idaho Cities (AIC), and various Directors.  
 -Snow removal – Mayor Casper requested any questions or concerns be directed to 
Director Fredericksen. She stated future public meetings will be held regarding snow removal 
policy and procedures for possible modifications. Director Fredericksen stated the on-average 
expense for each city-wide snow removal is approximately $250,000, while arterial snow 
removal is approximately $500,000 per season.  



JANUARY 25, 2016 
 

2 
 

 -Chamber of Commerce – February 4, 2016, State of City reviews. 
 -City Club – March 11, 2016, Cities and Citizenship as topic of discussion. 
 -Strategic Planning – possibly in March or April. 
 -Museum of Idaho (MOI) – David Pennock reported the MOI recently experienced 
internal embezzlement but stated no funds from City donations were affected.  
 -Personnel – Controller replacement will be in the near future. Melanie Marsh, Human 
Resources Director, has resigned due to personal reasons but will be available as needed prior 
to and during the transition of a new director.  
 -Training – After brief discussion it was decided by the Council that any additional 
training will occur at the conclusion of scheduled Work Sessions.  
 
Public Works submitted the following item: 
 
Discussion of Franchise Agreement with Intermountain Gas Company: 
 
Director Fredericksen appeared and introduced Teri TeNgaio, District Manager for 
Intermountain Gas Company. Key changes to the proposed ordinance include: a 30-year 
agreement reduced to a 15-year agreement, the ability of Intermountain Gas to view permits 
and Digline notifications, confidentiality issues allowable by law, electronic mapping capability 
for boundary review, increase of general liability insurance provisions, inclusion of most 
favorite nations (which will protect the investment by Intermountain Gas), maintenance 
repairs performed by Intermountain Gas were increased from one (1) year to three (3) years, 
and annual payments and reports were changed to a quarterly basis. Mr. Fife stated an 
ordinance is required for the franchise and will be concurrent with the existing ordinance. 
General discussion followed. Director Fredericksen stated the Franchise Agreement Ordinance 
will be included on the January 26, 2016, Council Meeting.  
 
Community Development Services submitted the following item: 
 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Allocations: 
 
Director Cramer stated the CDBG monies are to be utilized per criteria and guidelines of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Ms. Farris stated selection criteria is as follows: 
 Must meet 1 of 3 HUD National Objectives:  
  1) Benefit LMI (Low to Moderate Income) clients 
  2) Prevent/eliminate conditions of slum/blight 
  3) Meet an urgent need 
 Must be a HUD Eligible Activity 
 Must address 1 of 4 HUD Priorities: 
  1) Housing 
  2) Community Development 
  3) Economic 
  4) Public Service 
 Meet the goals of City’s 2016-2020 CDBG Five Year Consolidated Plan and be Council 
 and HUD approved for the CDBG Annual Action Plan.  
 
Director Cramer and Ms. Farris have reviewed all requests presented at the December 10, 
2015, public hearing. After lengthy discussion, Council concurred with the following 
allocations which will be approved by Resolution at the January 26, 2016, Council Meeting: 
 
  



JANUARY 25, 2016 
 

3 
 

FY2016 CDBG Applicants Project Application Description Amount 
allocated 

Public Service 15% Max   
Partners for Prosperity Financial counseling for Idaho Falls LMI clients with 

group financial classes and soft skills/personal 
development training. 

$8000 

Idaho Falls Legal Aid Legal Aid Assistance for victims of domestic violence. $7000 
Bonneville Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (BMPO) 

Match of 7.34% for Transportation Grant requirement to 
access Safe Routes to School grant of $50,000. 

$0 

CLUB, Inc. Presumed homeless Crisis Intervention (CIT) Case 
management/support for crisis housing and related 
services. 

$12,000 

Eastern Idaho Community 
Action Partnership (EICAP) 

Legal Aid Assistance – Grandparents raising grandchildren $3000 

Community Council of Idaho 1349 S. Holmes – Upgrade to Computer Lab to assist 
illiterate adults and/or migrant farm workers seeking 
employment. 

$0 

 Total Public Service Requests/Options $30,000 
Slum/Blight 30% Max   
Idaho Falls Downtown 
Development Corporation 
(IFDDC) 

Public Facility – Slum/Blight Area (SBA). Improvements 
include: facades/awnings/roofs/signs/code. 

$55,000 

LMI projects 70% Min   
Planning Department-Code 
Enforcement 

Code Enforcement Program in (3) LMI Census Tract 
neighborhoods. 

$71,342 

City Public Works Department Public Facility & Improvement with Curb/Gutter and 
Sidewalk Replacement-Phase III Bel Aire Subdivision 

$42,000 

City Public Works Department Public Facility & Improvement/Water Line Repairs LMI 
neighborhoods 

$0 

LIFE, Inc. Single Unit Housing Rehab to improve ADA access for (5-
7) disabled individuals with ADA ramps/bathroom 
remodels 

$0 

Sr. Citizen Community Center Public Facility/Improvement Sr. Centers. Replace 2 A/C 
units and accordion curtains in dining hall. 

$11,000 

Idaho Falls Rescue Mission 
Ruth House and Ark 

Public Facilities & Improvements for Homeless Facilities $50,000 

Habitat for Humanity Idaho 
Falls (HFHIF) 

Acquisition and Disposition – Allocate funds to purchase 
and demolish or rebuild (1) home located within the (3) US 
Census Tracts for an LMI family to purchase. 

$15,000 

 Total LMI Project Requests & Total Options $244,342 
Administration 20% Max Administer CDBG – Includes supplies, office equipment, 

training and resources 
$68,586 

 2016 Total Amount Requested by Application $342,928 
 
Council Training and Discussion: 
 
General Council Member Overview – Open Records, Conflicts, Ethics: 
 
Mr. Fife reminded the Council of the following: 
 -All meetings should be open and decisions should be made in a publicly-noticed  
  meeting.  
 -Refrain from email meetings by avoiding ‘reply all’.  
 -Conflicts of interest refer to any monetary gain whether personal or professional. 
 -Any public business can be considered a record, always assume a request will be 



JANUARY 25, 2016 
 

4 
 

  submitted for any record, including those in electronic format.  
 -Refer to Codes, or Mr. Fife’s office, for any questions or concerns.  
 
Council Meeting Overview – Definition, Notice and Scheduling, Agenda Management, Format, 
Streaming: 
 
Mayor Casper reviewed the schedule of 2016 meetings. She stated meetings requiring a forum, 
including Council Meetings, Work Sessions, Executive Sessions, any other Special Sessions, 
and Idaho Falls Power Board Meetings are noticed by the City Clerk. Other Department or 
Committee meetings are noticed by the participating Department. 
 
Mayor Casper reviewed the content of Council Meetings versus Work Sessions and requested 
Council feedback regarding routine business items. Mr. Fife stated routine business items 
generally reserved for Council Meetings could be handled at Work Sessions, however, he 
recommended the Council consider broadcasting such meetings.    
Councilmember Hally preferred to broadcast Council Meetings as well as Work Sessions. He 
believes it would increase flexibility to the agenda process. 
Councilmember Marohn preferred to gradually evolve Consent Agenda items to Work Sessions 
but believes Council should be able to approve items as needed.  
Councilmember Ehardt believes discussion of items should be available to the public.  
Councilmember Smith believes any action items should be broadcast. 
 
After further general discussion, it was decided the Council would prefer to broadcast Work 
Sessions at the minimal cost available.  
 
Mayor Casper reviewed the City Code with regard to Agenda Management which states Mayor 
establishes the Order of Business, realizing the goal is to facilitate the Council needs. She 
briefly reviewed the current process of items being placed on the agenda with regard to 
requests from Department Directors, Council President, and majority approval by the Council. 
General discussion followed.  
 
Planning Overview – Processes, Basic Elements, 2016 Goals: 
 
Director Cramer appeared and presented the following information: 
 
Why Plan?  

• To comply with Idaho law 
• To engage in dialogue with the public about their vision of the future of the 

community 
• To protect our health, our safety 
• To reduce public costs and maintain financial stability 
• To protect those features residents value 
• Maintain/improve quality of life 

  
Local Land Use Planning Act (LLUPA) – Statutory Purpose of Planning 

• To protect property rights while making accommodations for others 
• To ensure that adequate public facilities and services are provided at reasonable 

costs 
• To ensure that the economy is protected 
• To ensure that important environmental features are protected 



JANUARY 25, 2016 
 

5 
 

• To encourage the protection of prime agricultural, forestry and mining lands and 
land uses 

• To encourage urban development within cities 
• To avoid undue concentration of population and overcrowding 
• To ensure that land is developed commensurate with its physical characteristics 
• To protect against natural hazards 
• To protect natural resources 
• To avoid pollution 
• To allow school district to participate in the planning process 

 
Required planning process – As part of the planning process, a planning or zoning commission 
shall provide for citizen meetings, hearings, surveys, or other methods, to obtain advice on the 
planning process, plan, and implementation. The commission may also conduct informational 
meetings and consult with public officials and agencies, public utility companies, and civic, 
educational, professional, or other organizations. As part of the planning process, the 
commission shall endeavor to promote a public interest in and understanding of the 
commission's activities. 
 
Requirements of the Comprehensive Plan – The plan shall consider previous and existing 
conditions, trends, compatibility of land uses, desirable goals and objectives, or desirable 
future situations for each planning component. 
 
17 Required Components of the Comprehensive Plan: 

• Property Rights 
• Population 
• School Facilities 
• Economic Development 
• Land Use 
• Natural Resources 
• Hazardous Areas 
• Public Services, Facilities, and Utilities 
• Transportation 
• Recreation 
• Special Areas or Sites 
• Housing 
• Community Design 
• Agriculture 
• Implementation 
• National Interest Electric Transmission Corridors 
• Airport 

 
Comprehensive Planning Process includes Background Work, Planning Commission/Citizen 
Participation, and Policy and Map Development.  
 
How to Implement the Plan 
 Relating Comprehensive Planning to Ordinances: 

• Public Input and Background Research 
• Comprehensive Plan 
• Ordinances 



JANUARY 25, 2016 
 

6 
 

Comprehensive Plan Policy: Develop a program to involve neighbors in the community 
development process early. Unresolved opposition to land use development projects 
does not help us move towards our goals nor does it provide a predicable environment 
for investment and growth. We need to develop a process to move to resolution of issues 
early in the development process.  
 
Possible Action to be Taken: Develop an ordinance to require a developer to hold a 
neighborhood meeting prior to application for consideration at Planning Commission or 
Council.   

 
Implementation Projects 
 2016 Projects: 

• Sign Ordinance Revisions 
• Area of City Impact 
• Zoning Ordinance Revisions 
• Downtown Planning 

 Future Projects: 
• Neighborhood Plans 
• Area Planning 
• Zoning Ordinance Revisions 

Process and Procedures 
 Typical Applications 

• Annexations 
• Initial Zonings 
• Final Plats 
• Rezoning 
• Planned Unit Developments (PUD) 
• Conditional Use Permits (CUP) (Planned Transition Zones, RSC-1 Shopping 

Centers) 
 Required Notification Process 

• Application review 
• Legal description reviewed for accuracy 
• Legal Notice prepared 
• Legal Notice published in newspaper 15 days prior to hearing 
• Notice sent to all property owners within 300 feet of the property 
• Notice posted on the property at least 1 week prior to hearing 
• Agenda posted 48 hours prior to hearing 
• Meeting held 

 Plan Review Time 
• Planning Department and Public Works staff meets with applicant if requested 
• Plan submitted to Planning Division 
• Planning Division reviews within 48 hours of submittal 
• Plan is sent to Public Works for review 
• Public Works, Fire, and Idaho Falls Power review within 10 working days from 

submittal date 
• Plan with corrections returned to applicant 
• Applicant makes corrections 

 Plan Review Turn-Around Time 
• New Commercial Buildings & Additions: 10 working days from the time of 

submission.* 



JANUARY 25, 2016 
 

7 
 

• Commercial Interior Remodels: 5 working days from the time of submission.* 
• Residential Plans: 5 working days form time of submission.* 

*Turn-around times are based on receiving complete information for review. 
Process 

• Annexation (Reason to have in City) 
• Comprehensive Plan Designation (General idea for section of City) 
• Zoning (Consider all uses) 
• Plat (Preliminary and Final) 
• Land Use  

 
Mr. Fife stated Annexation, Comprehensive Plan Designation, and Zoning are legislative 
actions. Zoning, Plat, and Land Use are Quasi-judicial actions. Director Cramer stated a 
preliminary plat, which is located in the county, has no rights and individual lots cannot be 
sold until the final plat is approved by the Council and recorded on the County level.  
 
There being no further business it was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by 
Councilmember Smith, to move into Executive Session at 6:21 p.m., pursuant to the provision 
of Idaho Code Section 74-206A(1)(c) to acquire an interest in real property which is not owned 
by a public agency and not reconvene into Work Session. Roll call as follows: Aye – 
Councilmembers Ehardt, Radford, Smith, Marohn, Dingman, Hally. Nay – None. Motion 
carried.   
 
The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting (Executive Session), 
Monday, January 25, 2016, at the City Council Chambers in the City Annex Building located 
at 680 Park Avenue in Idaho Falls, Idaho at 6:21 p.m., pursuant to the provision of Idaho 
Code Section 74-206A(1)(c) to acquire an interest in real property which is not owned by a 
public agency. 
 
There were present: 
 
Mayor Rebecca L. Noah Casper 
Councilmember John Radford 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
Councilmember David M. Smith 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
Councilmember Michelle Ziel-Dingman 
 
Also present: 
 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Pamela Alexander, Municipal Services Director 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Radford, to move out 
of Executive Session and that the meeting adjourn at 6:46 p.m., which motion passed 
following a unanimous vote.  
 
 
               
  CITY CLERK         MAYOR 



JANUARY 26, 2016 - Unapproved 

1 

 

The City Council of the City of Idaho Falls met in Special Council Meeting, Tuesday, January 
26, 2016, in the Council Chambers in the City Annex Building located at 680 Park Avenue in 
Idaho Falls, Idaho at 7:30 p.m. 
 
There were present: 
 
Mayor Rebecca Casper 
Councilmember Michelle Ziel-Dingman 
Councilmember John B. Radford 
Councilmember Ed Marohn 
Councilmember David M. Smith 
Councilmember Thomas Hally 
Councilmember Barbara Ehardt 
 
Also present: 
 
Randy Fife, City Attorney 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
All available Department Directors 
 
Mayor Casper invited Tyler Ellison, a 7th grader at Taylorview Middle School and Boy Scout 
Troop #344, to come forward and lead those present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Mayor Casper requested any public comments not related to items on the agenda. No one 
appeared. 
 
Presentation: 
 
Idaho Falls Power Director, Jackie Flowers, stated Idaho Falls Power offers numerous energy 
efficiency programs. These programs began in 1980 and offer cost savings to residential, 
commercial, and industrial customers which in turn assists Idaho Falls Power with power 
resources and infrastructure. She indicated customers have saved in excess of 40 million 
kilowatt hours which has resulted in $2.14 million in electric rate savings, based on the 
residential rate. Director Flowers, along with Wid Ritchie, Conservation Energy Specialist, 
presented energy efficiently rebate checks to Idaho Steel Products, in the amount of 
$39,172.00, and to Conrad and Bischoff, in the amount of $52,998.00.  
 
Consent Agenda Items: 
 
Mayor Casper requested reappointments and new appointments for Board and Commissions: 

 Name   Commission     Term Expires 

 Kent Fugal  Traffic Safety Committee   12/31/2017 
 Bruce Lawrence Traffic Safety Committee   12/31/2017 
 Bruce Scholes Traffic Safety Committee   12/31/2017 
 Alden Allen  Board of Adjustment   12/31/2020 
 Nathan Kennedy Board of Adjustment   12/31/2020 
 Tom Nance  Historic Preservation Committee  12/31/2018 
 



JANUARY 26, 2016 - Unapproved 

2 

 

The City Clerk requested approval of Minutes from the December 7, 2015, Work Session; 
December 10, 2015, Idaho Falls Power Board Meeting; December 10, 2015, Council Meeting; 
December 11, 2015, Council Training Orientation; December 14, 2015, Work Session; 
December 17, 2015, Council Meeting; and December 30, 2015, Special Council Meeting.  
 
The City Clerk requested approval of License Applications, all carrying the required approvals. 
 
The City Clerk requested Council ratification for the publication of legal notices calling for 
public hearings on January 26, 2016.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Marohn, seconded by Councilmember Radford, to approve all 
items on the Consent Agenda according to recommendations presented. Roll call as follows: 
Aye – Councilmembers Smith, Hally, Radford, Dingman, Ehardt, Marohn. Nay – none. Motion 
carried.   
 
Regular Agenda Items: 
 
Idaho Falls Power submitted the following item for Council consideration: 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Bear Prairie, Assistant General Manager 
Subject: Master Confirmation Agreement 
 
Attached is a Master Confirmation Agreement with Shell Energy North America. The purpose 
of this agreement is to enable Idaho Falls Power to sell certified carbon free energy in the 
wholesale power markets.  This Master Confirmation Agreement is an addendum to our 
standard Western Systems Power Pool (WSPP) contract that we currently enter into wholesale 
transactions under. This contract has been reviewed by our legal department. Idaho Falls 
Power respectfully requests City Council approval of the agreement and authorize the Mayor to 
execute the document. 
 
Mr. Prairie stated this is a standardize agreement which allows for trade of renewable energy 
credits with consistent terms. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Smith, seconded by Councilmember Hally, to approve the 
Master Confirmation Agreement with Shell Energy North America and authorize the Mayor to 
execute the document. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Dingman, Smith, Marohn, 
Ehardt, Hally, Radford. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 
Public Works submitted the following items for Council consideration: 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 
Subject: Idaho Transportation Department State/Local Agreement - Intersection Of 

Holmes Avenue And Elva Street Project 



JANUARY 26, 2016 - Unapproved 

3 

 

Attached is a State/Local Agreement with the Idaho Transportation Department and 
accompanying Resolution with respect to the Intersection of Holmes Avenue and Elva Street 
project. This agreement stipulates that $2,000.00 be forwarded as deposit against the City 
match with the signed agreement if approved. This agreement has been reviewed by the City 
Attorney. Public Works recommends adoption of the resolution, approval of this agreement; 
and, authorization for Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 
 
Director Fredericksen stated this project is in conjunction with the Local Highway Safety 
Improvement Program with anticipated cost of $465,000.00. The City would be required to pay 
7% match with cost participation.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Dingman, to adopt the 
resolution and approve the State/Local Agreement for the Intersection of Holmes Avenue and 
Elva Street project, and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary 
documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Marohn, Dingman, Ehardt, Hally, 
Radford, Smith. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 

RESOLUTION 2016-03 
 
WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department, hereafter called the STATE, has submitted 
an Agreement stating obligations of the STATE and the CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, hereafter 
called the CITY, for development of Intersection of Holmes Avenue and Elva Street.  
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 
Subject: Idaho Transportation Department State/Local Agreement – 9th Street; SE  
  Bonneville to St. Clair Road Project   
 
Attached is a State/Local Agreement with the Idaho Transportation Department and 
accompanying Resolution with respect to the 9th Street; SE Bonneville to St. Clair Road 
project. This agreement stipulates that $2,000.00 be forwarded as deposit against the City 
match with the signed agreement if approved. This agreement has been reviewed by the City 
Attorney. Public Works recommends adoption of the resolution, approval of this agreement; 
and, authorization for Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 
 
Director Fredericksen stated the anticipated cost of this project is $193,000.00 with the City 
required to pay 7.34% match. He indicated the construction of this project should be 
completed within two (2) years.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Dingman, to adopt the 
resolution and approve the State/Local Agreement for the 9th Street; SE Bonneville to St. Clair 
Road project, and give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary 
documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Smith, Hally, Dingman, Radford, 
Ehardt, Marohn. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 

 
 
 



JANUARY 26, 2016 - Unapproved 

4 

 

RESOLUTION 2016-04 
 
WHEREAS, the Idaho Transportation Department, hereafter called the STATE, has submitted 
an Agreement stating obligations of the STATE and the CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, hereafter 
called the CITY, for development of 9th Street; Bonneville to St. Clair Pedestrian Crossings.   
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 
Subject: Franchise Ordinance with Intermountain Gas Company 
 
The existing Franchise Ordinance with Intermountain Gas Company will expire on March 6, 
2016. Therefore, attached for consideration is a Franchise Ordinance prepared by the City 
Attorney. The proposed Franchise Ordinance, if approved, would be for a 15-year period and 
provides the City access to Intermountain Gas mapping in formats compatible with our 
Geographic Information System (GIS). Public Works recommends approval of this ordinance; 
and, authorization for Mayor and City Clerk to sign the necessary documents. 
 
Director Fredericksen stated items updated in the proposed ordinance also includes: quarterly 
billing, warranty work, confidentiality, and insurance provisions. Councilmember Marohn 
stated franchise fees supplement the General Fund revenues.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Dingman, to approve 
the Franchise Ordinance with Intermountain Gas Company under the suspension of the rules 
requiring three complete and separate readings and that it be read by title and published by 
summary. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Hally, Marohn, Radford, Dingman, 
Smith, Ehardt. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 
At the request of Mayor Casper, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only:  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3052 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, GRANTING TO INTERMOUNTAIN 
GAS COMPANY A FIFTEEN (15) YEAR FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN, AND 
OPERATE A GAS TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM; PROVIDING FOR THE USE 
OF STREETS AND ALLEYS, AND RULES GOVERNING THE SAME, SUBJECTING THE 
FRANCHISE AND FRANCHISEE TO ALL POWERS OF THE CITY; SETTING FORTH THE 
RULES OF THE FRANCHISE AND GRANT; PROVIDING FOR THE RIGHT OF INSPECTION BY 
THE CITY OF FRANCHISEE'S PLANS, ACCOUNTS, AND BOOKS; REQUIRING FRANCHISEE 
TO FURNISH CERTAIN MAPS; SETTING FORTH THE QUARTERLY PAYMENT TO THE CITY, 
AND THE FILING OF QUARTERLY REPORTS WITH THE CITY; RIGHT TO ADDITIONAL 
PAYMENTS TO CITY; REQUIRING FRANCHISEE TO INDEMNIFY CITY, AND FILE EVIDENCE 
OF INSURANCE; REQUIRING COMPLIANCE WITH SAFETY REGULATIONS; SETTING FORTH 
AN AGREEMENT NOT TO COMPETE, RESERVING POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN; 
PROVIDING FOR SURRENDER OF FRANCHISE; GRANTING RIGHT TO SALVAGE; 
REQUIRING WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE; PROVIDING FOR CONSENT TO SALE OR 
ASSIGNMENT; PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT OF PUBLICATION COSTS; SETTING FORTH 
PENALTIES AND FORFEITURES, SEVERABILITY, AND REPEAL. 
 



JANUARY 26, 2016 - Unapproved 

5 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 
Subject: Bid Award – Well 8 Electrical Upgrade 
 
On January 19, 2016, bids were received and opened for the Well 8 Electrical Upgrade project. 
A tabulation of bid results is attached. Public Works recommends approval of the plans and 
specifications, award to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, Mountain West Electric, 
Inc., in an amount of $91,500.00 and, authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign 
contract documents. 
 
Director Fredericksen stated the two (2) bid awards will ensure water and electrical systems 
are updated for continual support to the growing community. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Dingman, to approve of 
the plans and specifications for Well 8 Electrical Upgrade and award to the lowest responsive, 
responsible bidder, Mountain West Electric, Inc., an amount of $91,500.00 and give 
authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents. Roll call as follows: Aye 
– Councilmembers Ehardt, Radford, Smith, Marohn, Dingman, Hally. Nay – none. Motion 
carried.  
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From:  Chris H Fredericksen, Public Works Director 
Subject: Bid Award – Well 9 & 10 Electrical Upgrade 
 
On January 19, 2016, bids were received and opened for the Well 9 & 10 Electrical Upgrade 
project. A tabulation of bid results is attached. Public Works recommends approval of the 
plans and specifications, award to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, CR Clark 
Construction, LLC, in an amount of $514,572.00 and, authorization for the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign contract documents. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Ehardt, seconded by Councilmember Dingman, to approve of 
the plans and specifications for Well 9 & 10 Electrical Upgrade and award to the lowest 
responsive, responsible bidder, CR Clark Construction, LLC, an amount of $514,572.00 and 
give authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign contract documents. Roll call as 
follows: Aye – Councilmembers Radford, Ehardt, Hally, Marohn, Dingman. Nay – none. 
Abstain – Smith. Motion carried.  
 
Idaho Falls Police Department submitted the following item for Council consideration: 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Rebecca Casper, Mayor 
From:  Mark McBride, Chief of Police 
Subject: Purchase Requisition Approval 
 



JANUARY 26, 2016 - Unapproved 

6 

 

During the FY2016 budget process an amount of $331,502 was approved by City Council as 
the police department’s share of the expenses for replacing the current consolidated Records 
Management System and Computer Aided Dispatch. Work has been ongoing to complete this 
project, and the Bonneville County Sheriff’s Office has paid for the project to date. The 
Sheriff’s Office has submitted an invoice to the Idaho Falls Police Department for $291,206.73. 
The remaining amount will be billed as project goals are completed. The Idaho Falls Police 
Department respectfully request that the City Council to approve paying the bill to the 
Bonneville County Sheriff’s Office in the amount of $291,206.73. 
 
Chief McBride stated the Records Management System is currently being developed and 
anticipates training for the system to occur in July, 2016. He believes this will be a substantial 
benefit for public safety.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Marohn, to approve 
the purchase requisition to reimburse the Bonneville County Sheriff’s Office for the 
consolidated Records Management System in the amount of $291,206.73. Roll call as follows: 
Aye – Councilmembers Marohn, Dingman, Ehardt, Hally, Radford, Smith. Nay – none. Motion 
carried.  
 
Community Development Services submitted the following items for Council consideration:  
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Director 
Subject: Resolution to approve FY2016 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Annual Action Plan and FY2016-2020 CDBG Five Year Consolidated Plan 
 
Attached is the resolution approving the FY2016 CDBG Annual Action Plan and FY2016-2020 
CDBG Five Year Consolidated Plan.  The Annual Action Plan includes allocation of FY2016 
funding to approved projects and activities. The Five Year Consolidated Plan includes needs 
assessments and priorities for the planning period as well as an updated Analysis of 
Impediments to Fair Housing for the City. Included in the attachments are priorities from the 
plan as well as comments received during the public comment period following the public 
hearing held on the plans on December 10, 2015. 
 
Director Cramer stated due to selection criteria and requirements from HUD (Department of 
Housing and Urban Development), not all projects submitted will receive allocated monies.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the 
Resolution to approve FY2016 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Annual Action 
Plan and FY2016-2020 CDBG Five Year Consolidated Plan and authorize the Mayor and City 
Clerk to sign the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Ehardt, 
Marohn, Hally, Radford, Smith, Dingman. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 

RESOLUTION 2016-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, FISCAL YEAR 2016 CDBG ANNUAL 
ACTION PLAN AND FISCAL YEARS 2016-2020 CDBG FIVE-YEAR CONSOLIDATED PLAN.  
MEMORANDUM 



JANUARY 26, 2016 - Unapproved 

7 

 

 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
From: Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Director 
Subject: Application for Rezoning from HC-1 to I&M-1, Zoning Ordinance, and Reasoned 

Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards, M&B 4.469 acres, SE ¼ Section 
13, T 2N, R 37E 

 
Attached is the application for rezoning from HC-1 to I&M-1, Zoning Ordinance, and Reasoned 
Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for M&B 4.469 acres, SE ¼ Section 13, T 2N, R 
37E. The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this application at its November 3, 
2015 meeting and recommended denial by a 5-2 vote. The denial was due to concerns about 
I&M-1 zoning so close to an entryway to the City. Staff concurs with the concerns and has 
discussed alternatives with the applicant. This item is now being submitted to the Mayor and 
City Council for consideration.  
 
Mayor Casper opened the public hearing and ordered all staff materials and presentation be 
entered into the record. 
 
Director Cramer appeared with the following: 
 
 Slide 1: Location of property in current zoning 
 
Director Cramer stated the memo presented to Council indicated rezoning to I&M-1 although 
all materials presented indicate rezoning to GC-1. He stated the GC-1 zone is more restrictive 
than an I&M-1 zone. Due to the recent update of the GC-1 zone, be believes the GC-1 zone is 
an appropriate alternative zone.  
 
 Slide 2: Aerial photo and vicinity map of property under consideration  
 Slide 3: Aerial photo of surrounding land uses 

Slide 4: Additional aerial photo of surrounding land uses along site 
 

Director Cramer stated the Planning Commission expressed concern with this location as 
being zoned industrial as it is an entry way to the City.   

 
Slide 5: Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

 Slide 6: Photos looking north from Quigley Street and south from Quigley Street 
 Slide 7: Photos looking east from the rear of the properties 
 
Director Cramer stated a rezone request should consider what the zone will allow and should 
not focus on the specific applicant. He indicated current happenings in the area should also 
be considered with rezoning. 
 
 Slide 8: Additional uses allowed in the GC-1 Zone 
 
At Council request, Director Cramer briefly described the uses allowed in an I&M-1 Zone.  
  
Mayor Casper requested any public comment.  
 
Steven Frei, 4071 N 5th W, Idaho Falls, appeared.  Mr. Frei stated he represents the three (3) 
applicants in various capacities. The GC-1 zone request will accommodate all applicants and 



JANUARY 26, 2016 - Unapproved 

8 

 

all landscaping requirements will enhance the zoning. He indicated it has been difficult to 
lease the property due to the current zone.  
 
David Drews, 1370 Cameron, Idaho Falls, appeared. Mr. Drews stated there are no current 
plans for the property but also indicated it is difficult to lease the property. Mr. Drews is in 
favor of the rezone. 
 
Benjamin Doitch, of Mercury Plastics, appeared. Mr. Doitch stated he owns three (3) lots on 
the property under consideration and is committed to continue business in the Idaho Falls 
area. He is in favor of the rezone.  
 
Director Cramer stated the applicant requested the rezone to GC-1 after the Planning 
Commission recommended denial of I&M-1 rezone.  
 
Mr. Frei reappeared and stated he believes the uses intended for this area will be 
complimentary overall. 
 
Mayor Casper closed the public hearing.  
 
After brief discussion it was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember 
Smith, to approve the Ordinance for the rezoning of M&B 4.469 acres, SE ¼ Section 13, T 2N, 
R 37E, from HC-1 to GC-1 under the suspension of the rules requiring three complete and 
separate readings and that it be read by title and published by summary. Roll call as follows: 
Aye – Councilmembers Radford, Ehardt, Smith, Marohn, Dingman, Hally. Nay – none. Motion 
carried.  
 
At the request of Mayor Casper, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only:  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3053 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF 
THE STATE OF IDAHO; PROVIDING FOR THE REZONING OF M&B 4.469 ACRES, SE ¼, 
SECTION 13, T 2N, R 37E, LOCATED SOUTH OF MERCURY AVENUE, WEST OF LINDSAY 
BOULEVARD, NORTH OF BURGESS STREET AND EAST OF I-15, AS DESCRIBED IN 
SECTION 1 OF THIS ORDINANCE FROM HC-1 ZONE WITH A PT-2 OVERLAY ZONE TO GC-1 
ZONE; AND PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, PUBLICATION BY SUMMARY, AND ESTABLISHING 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
It was later noted by Director Cramer that “WITH A PT-2 OVERLAY ZONE” be disregarded 
from the ordinance.  
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the 
Reasoned Statement of Relevant Criteria and Standards for the rezoning of M&B 4.469 acres, 
SE ¼ Section 13, T 2N, R 37E, from HC-1 to GC-1, and give authorization for the Mayor to 
execute the necessary documents. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Hally, Smith, 
Dingman, Ehardt, Marohn, Radford. Nay – none. Motion carried.   
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 



JANUARY 26, 2016 - Unapproved 

9 

 

From: Brad Cramer, Community Development Services Director 
Subject: Ordinance to modify Title 2, Chapter 2, and Title 5, Chapter 8 to the City Code 
 
Attached is an ordinance modifying Title 2, Chapter 2, and Title 5, Chapter 8 to the City Code. 
Title 2, Chapter 2 establishes residency requirements for service on the Planning Commission. 
Staff is proposing to change the requirement from five years to two years which is the 
requirement found in the Local Land Use Planning Act. Title 5, Chapter 8 deals with 
enforcement procedures for Code Enforcement. The current code does not match the methods 
and procedures Code Enforcement currently uses to enforce codes and ordinances. 
 
Mayor Casper opened the public hearing and ordered all staff materials and presentation be 
entered into the record. 
 
Director Cramer appeared and briefly explained the changes to the ordinance, including 
reducing the residency requirements for the Planning Commission Staff from 5 years to 2 
years and Code Enforcement methods.  
 
Mayor Casper requested any public comment. No one appeared. 
 
Mayor Casper closed the public hearing. 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Dingman, seconded by Councilmember Smith, to approve the 
Ordinance to modify Title 2, Chapter 2, and Title 5, Chapter 8 to the City Code under the 
suspension of the rules requiring three complete and separate readings and that it be read by 
title and published by summary. Roll call as follows: Aye – Councilmembers Smith, Hally, 
Radford, Dingman, Ehardt, Marohn. Nay – none. Motion carried.  
 
At the request of the Mayor, the City Clerk read the ordinance by title only: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3054 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, AMENDING TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2 
AND TITLE 5, CHAPTER 8; TO REQUIRE RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS FOR MEMBERS OF 
THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION, PROHIBIT LITTERING, AND TO AMEND THE 
NUISANCE ABATEMENT PROCESS, PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, PUBLICATION BY 
SUMMARY, AND ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
There being no further business, it was moved by Councilmember Hally, seconded by 
Councilmember Marohn, to adjourn at 9:05 p.m. which motion passed by unanimous vote. 
  
 
 
_____________________________________   _______________________________________ 
  CITY CLERK       MAYOR 
 
 
 
 







PO Box 50220                                                                                                                               Phone: 208-612-8430 
140 S Capital                                                                                                                                  Fax: 208-612-8435 
Idaho Falls ID 83405                                                                                                                                 www.ifpower.org 
 

  
A Department of the City of Idaho Falls “A community with its own kind of energy” 
 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Jackie Flowers, General Manager 
 
DATE: February 22, 2016 
 
Re: Resolution Adopting the Financial Stability & Creditworthiness Policy 
 
 
Attached for your consideration is a resolution adopting the Financial Stability & 
Creditworthiness Policy for Idaho Falls Power.  This policy combines the utility’s 
previous Risk Management and Rate Stabilization Fund policies into one comprehensive 
policy. An updated policy is necessary given that the previous policies were established 
to comply with bond ordinances that are no longer relevant since Idaho Falls Power fully 
retired its debt.  The new policy establishes a framework consistent with credit rating 
agency requirements that will ensure sustained strong financial condition of the utility.  
The City Attorney has developed the resolution and reviewed the policy.   
 
Idaho Falls Power respectfully requests that City Council approve the resolution and 
authorize the Mayor to sign the documents.  
 
JRF/731 
 
Attachment 
 
Cc: City Clerk 
 City Attorney 
 file  
     

http://www.appanet.org/special/index.cfm?ItemNumber=12071


 

2015 Financial Stability Policy 

8706657/JCB/CJ 

 

CITY OF IDAHO FALLS 

IDAHO FALLS POWER 

FINANCIAL STABILITY AND CREDITWORTHINESS POLICY 

 

 

Adopted February 25, 2016 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The City of Idaho Falls, Idaho (the “City”) owns a municipal electric utility system (the 

“System”), which is managed and operated by Idaho Falls Power, a department of the City 

(“IFP”).  IFP is supervised by and receives direction from the Mayor and City Council of the 

City (the “Governing Body”).  This Financial Stability and Creditworthiness Policy (this 

“Policy”) is adopted by the Governing Body in consideration of the following factors: 

A. The City presently purchases the majority of the power supply requirements of the 

customers served by IFP from the Bonneville Power Administration (“Bonneville”) 

under a Block and Slice Power Sales Agreement (the “Power Sales Agreement”) that 

extends to September 30, 2028.  In connection with its execution of the Power Sales 

Agreement, the City was required to enter into a Creditworthiness Agreement with 

Bonneville (the “Creditworthiness Agreement”).  Under the Power Sales Agreement and 

Creditworthiness Agreement, Bonneville may in its sole discretion require the City to 

post collateral to secure the City’s payment obligations under the Power Sales Agreement 

upon the occurrence of various events, some of which are outside of the control of the 

City (e.g., substantial changes in market prices for electricity, litigation, adverse 

legislation and judicial rulings, and other events).  The Power Sales Agreement includes a 

Cost Recovery Adjustment Clause (the “CRAC”) under which the rates charged to the 

City may be adjusted to enable Bonneville to recover all of its costs. 

B. The nature and amount of power supply available under the Power Sales Agreement 

requires IFP to enter into wholesale power transactions in order to purchase supplemental 

power supply on a seasonal basis, as well as to supply any portion of the System’s 

requirements that is not met by the Power Sales Agreement and IFP’s other resources, 

and to sell surplus power on a seasonal basis.  Strong credit quality is important for the 

execution of wholesale power transactions on favorable terms, including avoiding the 

need to post collateral in such transactions.  Wholesale power transactions and other risk 

management activities shall be undertaken in compliance with IFP’s Risk Management 

Policy, which is attached to and is a part of this Financial Stability and Creditworthiness 

Policy (this “Policy”). 

C. IFP owns generation and transmission assets, including the Gem State Project and the 

Bulb Turbine Project.  Although all of the bonds issued by the City to finance these 

Projects have been retired, the Projects will require significant investments in future years 

for capital renewals, replacements and upgrades.  IFP may also make significant 



-2- 

investments in transmission and distribution facilities to improve and expand the 

System’s delivery of electricity to its customers.  The costs of these capital investments 

can be funded through reserves or future revenue bond issues.  Financial stability and 

strong credit quality enhances IFP’s ability to fund the costs of these investments either 

out of capital projects reserves or through financing transactions on favorable terms. 

D. IFP is a member of Utah Associated Municipal Power Systems, a political subdivision of 

the State of Utah (“UAMPS”), and participates in certain of UAMPS’ projects, including 

the Horse Butte Wind Project.  The credit ratings on UAMPS’ bond-financed projects 

reflect the overall creditworthiness of its participating members, and reductions in IFP’s 

financial standing or credit rating could have an adverse effect on the rating on these 

bonds.  Maintaining financial stability and strong credit quality is also important for 

ensuring IFP’s ability to participate in projects undertaken by UAMPS, other joint action 

agencies and other project sponsors. 

II. PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

The purpose of this Financial Stability and Creditworthiness Policy (this “Policy”) is to 

establish policies and principles for maintaining and enhancing IFP’s financial stability and 

creditworthiness to best position IFP to (i) meet the creditworthiness requirements under the 

Power Sale Agreement, the Creditworthiness Agreement, and wholesale power purchase 

agreements with market participants, (ii) participate in future generation and transmission 

projects, (iii) fund and maintain sufficient reserves for working capital, capital projects and rate 

stabilization purposes, and (iv) have access to credit markets and favorable financing terms as 

and when necessary. 

This Policy has been adopted (i) in furtherance of the Mission Statement of Idaho Falls 

Power, (ii) to promote the continued ability of IFP to provide reliable, low-cost power supply 

service to its customers, and (iii) pursuant to the City’s power and authority under the laws of the 

State of Idaho to own and operate the System and to take all actions necessary for the prudent 

operation and management of the System. 

III. POLICIES FOR MAINTAINING FINANCIAL STABILITY AND STRONG CREDIT QUALITY 

The policies and principles set forth in this Policy reflect the rating criteria for public 

power utilities established by the three major municipal bond rating agencies (Fitch Ratings, 

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and Moody’s Investors Service), as of the date of adoption 

of this Policy.  This Policy may be updated from time to time to reflect changes in such rating 

criteria or other events, factors or conditions. 

A. Governance and Management 

1. Prudent, informed and stable governance and management of IFP, consistent with 

sound business practices, are key factors in maintaining and enhancing the 

financial stability and creditworthiness of IFP. 



-3- 

2. The policies of the Governing Body regarding the governance of IFP include: 

a. The Governing Body will be objective, independent, informed and 

engaged. 

b. IFP’s Management (which, for purposes of this Policy and the Risk 

Management Policy, shall mean the General Manager and Assistant 

General Manager) shall possess (i) a high degree of understanding of 

IFP’s Mission Statement, organization and operations, as well as of the 

electric energy industry, (ii) proper experience and training for his or her 

position, and (iii) the experience and ability to engage in and implement 

long-term, comprehensive planning, achieve strategic goals, identify risks 

and develop and implement risk management and mitigation plans, and 

manage changing conditions and unforeseen circumstances. 

c. Each employee of IFP shall have (i) proper experience and training for his 

or her position and (ii) demonstrated willingness to work constructively 

and cooperatively with Management and other employees to achieve the 

goals of IFP. 

d. Provide transparency and strong communication and coordination of 

efforts between Management, the Governing Body and the customers 

served by the System. 

e. Ensure the retention of Management and key employees with industry 

experience and institutional knowledge. 

3. Management of IFP will: 

a. Obtain appropriate continuing education in their areas of responsibility 

and participate in public power and other electric industry to stay informed 

on new developments, opportunities and challenges. 

b. Ensure appropriate training and education of employees. 

c. Conduct annual analyses of industry standard salaries, benefits and 

position requirements. 

d. Develop and document succession planning for Management and key 

employees. 

B. Asset and Operations Management 

1. The policy of IFP is to engage in forward-looking asset and operations 

management. 



-4- 

2. Integrated Resource Planning: 

a. Generation and other power supply risks shall be identified, monitored, 

mitigated and managed to achieve and promote power supply stability, 

reliability of service, and stable, cost-effective long-term rates to 

consumers. 

b. Management shall at least monthly monitor and evaluate IFP’s power 

supply portfolio, the risks, costs and reliability of each power supply 

resource and its impact on all-in cost of power supply, and shall monitor 

hydrologic and other conditions and forecasts that affect the generation 

available under IFP’s Power Sales Agreement with Bonneville, the 

operation of the CRAC, and any proposed changes in Bonneville’s rates or 

terms of service, as well as hydrologic and other factors affecting the 

generation of the Bulb Turbine and Gem State Projects. 

c. Consideration shall be given to fuel mix, generation performance records 

(plant availability and capacity factors, load factor, heat rate), role and 

position of each resource in portfolio, environmental mandates/goals (e.g. 

with hydro, consider fish and wildlife protection), with comparisons to 

accepted industry standards and the regional market. 

d. Management shall annually assess the adequacy of transmission resources, 

and transmission costs and risks. 

e. Management shall develop plans and cost containment strategies for the 

proper management and mitigation of power supply risks, taking into 

account the substantial portion of IFP’s power supply that is generated by 

hydroelectric resources.   

f. Management shall analyze the effect of factors such as load growth, 

expiring power purchase contracts, aging assets, legislative, regulatory and 

environmental matters (e.g., renewable mandates) on future power supply 

resources, loads, risks, transmission and overall System operations. 

g. In planning for new generation or power supply resources, Management 

shall consider factors such as promoting diversity within the power supply 

portfolio, the type of generation and its fit within IFP’s existing power 

supply portfolio (including fuel supply/source, efficiency, size, cost, 

baseload/intermediate/peaking, etc.), maturity of technology, the reliability 

and cost of transmission, contract terms, and environmental factors. 

h. The Risk Management Policy should also be strictly followed for all 

wholesale power transactions. 

3. System Assets 



-5- 

a. Management shall at least annually consider and evaluate the age and 

condition of generation, transmission and distribution assets for (i) general 

reliability and efficiency, (ii) compliance with relevant federal, state and 

local regulations, and (iii) capital renewals, replacements and upgrades 

and their costs. 

b. Management shall identify and plan for necessary renewal and 

replacement expenditures as a part of the ten-year capital improvement 

plan and budget described below. 

c. Management shall monitor and assess the sufficiency of reserves and 

internal liquidity to fund capital repairs, replacements and improvements 

and future capital projects, additions and improvements. 

4. Insurance and Catastrophic Risk Assessment 

a. Management of IFP shall maintain property, casualty, business 

interruption and liability insurance policies, including flood and 

earthquake insurance, with respect to the System with such coverage 

amounts as are required by applicable regulatory requirements and as are 

consistent with prudent and accepted municipal electric utility industry 

practice.  Insurance policies shall be obtained from reputable insurers 

rated, to the extent available and at reasonable terms, at least “A-”. 

b. Management shall engage an independent insurance consultant to review 

the adequacy of all insurance at least annually. 

c. Deductibles and self-insurance amounts under property and casualty 

policies shall be taken into account in evaluating the sufficiency of the 

reserve balances maintained by IFP in the Electric Light Fund and the 

Rate Stabilization Fund. 

d. Management shall annually assess the sufficiency of insurance coverage 

and internal reserves in light of possible catastrophic events or failures of 

the principle operating facilities of IFP, exposure to the market costs of 

wholesale power supplies and other factors, and shall recommend 

appropriate risk mitigation strategies to the Governing Body for approval 

and implementation. 

5. System Security and Safety 

a. Management shall (i) strive to maintain security and safety of the 

operating properties of the System is maintained consistent with prudent 

municipal electric utility industry practices and applicable regulatory 

requirements, and (ii) monitor and assess, and take such actions as shall be 

necessary to manage and mitigate, all security and safety risks. 



-6- 

b. The Governing Body and Management recognize the significance of 

emerging and evolving cyber-security risks, and shall take such actions as 

are reasonably practical to protect the operating facilities of the System, 

System data and customer information. 

C. Financial Performance 

1. Overall Financial Health:  Management shall manage the financial health of IFP 

in a proactive manner consistent with sound business practices, and will:  

a. Conduct monthly analyses and updating of financial forecasts and 

resource-management plans. 

b. Monthly evaluate and compare results from prior financial forecasts, to 

gauge success. 

c. Have documented risk-management policies, practices and procedures. 

2. Annual Operating Budget:  Management shall prepare and submit to the 

Governing Body an annual operating budget for all IFP operations. 

a. The annual operating budget shall be prepared on the basis of critical 

water conditions, with such adjustments as Management shall consider to 

be necessary or appropriate. 

b. The annual operating budget shall include any adjustments to the target 

balances (described below) for the Electric Light Fund, the Capital 

Improvement Fund and the Rate Stabilization Fund that are necessary to 

provide the liquidity and other reserve amounts provided for in this Policy. 

c. Management shall monitor the budget-to-actual performance of IFP on a 

monthly basis and if, during the course of any fiscal year, the actual 

revenues and expenses of IFP diverge materially from the adopted budget, 

Management shall consider whether to recommend to the Governing Body 

appropriate amendments to the adopted budget. 

3. Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan: Management shall (i) prepare and submit to 

the Governing Body a ten-year capital improvement plan for the System, and (ii) 

annually revise and update the capital improvement plan and submit it to the 

Governing Body for approval.  The capital improvement budget shall cover all 

generation, transmission, distribution and other assets of the System and shall: 

a. include renewal and replacement expenditures in order to maintain a high 

degree of reliability and efficiency in System operations, 



-7- 

b. include such other capital expenditures as may be necessary to meet 

system load growth, promote System efficiency and reliability and other 

objectives considered necessary or beneficial by Management, and 

c. prioritize and schedule all renewal and replacement and capital 

improvement expenditures. 

4. Rates: It is the goal of IFP to have stable, competitive and affordable rates that 

provide (i) for the recovery of all costs of service, including all operating, capital 

and debt service costs, (ii) a fair and reasonable allocation of costs of service 

among all rate classifications, (iii) for the funding and maintenance of reserves for 

working capital and liquidity, capital projects and capital expenditures, and rate 

stabilization, and (iv) funding for transfers to the City’s General Fund that are 

consistent with the policies set forth in Section III.C.7 of this Policy. 

a. Management will at least annually monitor the rates and charges for 

System services to ensure full and timely recovery of all costs of service, 

and will from time to time conduct (or engage an independent consultant 

to conduct) cost of service studies to ensure fair and reasonable cost 

allocations among rate classifications.  Management will inform the 

Governing Body of projected future changes in rates. 

b. All rate changes will be recommended to the Governing Body by 

Management.  The Governing Body acknowledges that prompt action on 

recommended rate changes is a key component of IFP’s financial stability 

and creditworthiness. 

c. The rate-setting process shall be public, transparent and consistent with 

best practices for public power utilities comparable to IFP. 

d. The rate structure shall include a power cost adjustment provision that 

shall provide for (i) upward adjustments to rates for the full and timely 

recovery of all current costs of service and (ii) downward adjustments to 

rates when surplus revenues are available from the prior year’s operations. 

The power cost adjustment provision is attached as Schedule I to this 

Policy. 

e. Management shall at least annually compare the rates for System services 

to state, regional and national averages, and strive to maintain rates that 

are competitive and affordable and consistent with the objectives of this 

Policy.   

5. Liquidity and Coverage: 



-8- 

a. It is the policy of IFP to maintain at least 250 days’ cash on hand in the 

combined balance of the Electric Light Fund and the Rate Stabilization 

Fund, calculated as: 

Unrestricted Cash and Unrestricted Investments x 365 

      Operating Expenses – Depreciation 

 Management shall perform a monthly review of cash on hand. 

b. While one goal of this Policy is to ensure that IFP will at all times have 

sufficient liquid assets to meet its current expenses and working capital 

requirements, IFP may consider utilizing external sources of liquidity, 

such as bank lines of credit, when appropriate or when circumstances 

warrant.  Liquidity providers will be of high credit quality, and the terms 

of any liquidity instruments will be evaluated carefully for potential risks. 

Management shall perform a monthly review of liquid assets and working 

capital requirements. 

c. IFP will monitor and maintain coverage levels equal to at least 200% for 

debt service and all other fixed obligations, calculated as: 

   Operating Revenues – Operating Expenses + Depreciation + Interest Income 

      Fixed Charges 

 Where (i) Operating Expenses includes General Fund transfers and (ii) 

Fixed Charges includes debt service costs and unconditional payment 

obligations, such as those under take-or-pay contracts. Management shall 

perform a monthly review of coverage levels. 

6. Funds and Accounts; Target Balances:  The following funds and accounts will be 

maintained by IFP for the purposes and in the amounts as described below: 

a. Electric Light Fund.  The general operating fund of IFP from which all 

current expenses of the System are paid and from which General Fund 

transfers are made.  To provide working capital, liquidity and reserves for 

IFP’s operations, the current target balance for the Electric Light Fund is 

$10 million.  Adjustments to the target balance shall be provided for in the 

annual operating budgets. 

b. Capital Improvement Fund, consisting of: 

i. Transmission & Distribution (T&D) Account.  Amounts in this 

Account shall be used to pay the costs of capital additions, 

improvements, renewals and replacements to the transmission and 

distribution facilities of the System.  The current target balance for 

this account is $15 million. 



-9- 

ii. Generation Account.  Amounts in this Account shall be used to pay 

the costs of capital additions, improvements, renewals and 

replacements to the generation facilities of the System, as well as 

capital contributions that may be made under the terms of the 

UAMPS power sales contracts to reduce or eliminate future debt 

service billings.  The current target balance for this account is $2 

million. 

 Adjustments to the target balances for the Accounts within the Capital 

Improvement Fund shall be provided for in the annual budget. 

 Uncommitted amounts for future capital expenditures in the Accounts 

within the Capital Improvement Fund may be used to provide liquidity for 

IFP operations in unusual circumstances. 

c. Rate Stabilization Fund.  The Rate Stabilization Fund is established to 

prepare IFP for unforeseen and unforeseeable events, such as the 2000-

2001 crises in the wholesale energy markets in the Western States. The 

Rate Stabilization Fund shall be used: 

i. to pay extraordinary or unexpected costs of System operations, 

including power supply, repair or replacement and other costs, and 

ii. in conjunction with the power cost adjustment provision in IFP’s 

structure, with amounts being deposited to or withdrawn from the 

Rate Stabilization Fund depending upon System operations during 

the preceding fiscal year. 

The current target balance for the Rate Stabilization Fund is $20 million. 

d. Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund (MERF”). The MERF is 

currently maintained by the City’s Municipal Services Department and 

accumulates IFP moneys for future replacements of IFP vehicles and 

equipment.  Management of IFP shall (i) compare the MERF fund balance 

with IFP’s projected replacements of vehicles and equipment and (ii) 

provide for transfers to the MERF in the annual budget in such amounts as 

it deems appropriate to provide for vehicle and equipment replacements.  

To the extent that IFP Management determines that the MERF fund 

balance exceeds IFP’s project replacement needs, it may request that a 

portion of the fund balance be returned by the City to the Electric Light 

Fund. 

e. Weatherization Fund.  The Weatherization Fund is an IFP-held revolving 

fund used to provide loans to customers for energy efficiency projects.  

This fund was originally established in 1995 with funds provided by 

Bonneville when it ceased financial support of Conservation Program 



-10- 

activities that were initiated in 1981. When Bonneville re-established its 

Energy Efficiency Program and funding for customer utilities in fiscal 

year 2001, it included provisions that allowed utilities to retain funds once 

annual targets were met, as long as funds were used for energy efficiency 

measures. This allows the balance to grow to the target level of $2.5 

million for energy efficiency programs. 

f. Management shall, annually in connection with the preparation of IFP’s 

operating budget and at such other times as shall be necessary or 

appropriate, evaluate the adequacy of the target balances for the Electric 

Light Fund, the Capital Improvement Fund and the Rate Stabilization 

Fund, and shall recommend to the Governing Body such adjustments to 

the target balances as it deems appropriate and consistent with the 

purposes of this Policy. 

g. Management of IFP and management of the City’s Municipal Services 

Department shall consult and cooperate with one another to coordinate the 

financial management of IFP in a prudent consistent manner that is 

consistent with sound and accepted business practices.  Billings to IFP 

customers shall be made not less than monthly, and any late payment 

interest charges or fees shall be deposited into the Electric Light Fund. 

h. Investments of all moneys held in the funds and accounts described in this 

Policy shall be made in accordance with sound investment practices and 

shall comply in all respects with the laws of the State of Idaho governing 

investments of public funds.  An annual review of investments shall be 

conducted between Municipal Services and IFP Management with an 

annual report on said investments being made to the Governing Body. 

i. Management may from time to time recommend the establishment of such 

additional funds and accounts as may be necessary or desirable in 

connection with IFP’s operations. 

7. General Fund Transfers: 

a. IFP currently transfers from the Electric Light Fund to the City’s General 

Fund an amount equal to six percent of IFP’s average actual operating 

revenues for the three preceding fiscal years of operations.  These General 

Fund transfers shall be included in IFP’s annual budget and shall be made 

in approximately equal monthly installments.  IFP contributions to the 

City’s Traffic Signalization Account shall be deducted from the General 

Fund transfer amounts. 

b. As a part of each annual operating budget process, Management of IFP 

will annually compare the total budgeted General Fund transfers against 

the data available in the most recent report on “Payments and 



-11- 

Contributions by Public Power Distribution Systems to State and Local 

Governments” prepared by the American Public Power Association (the 

“APPA Report”), and will prepare and deliver a report on this comparison 

to the Governing Body.  In-kind transfers (e.g., labor, materials, etc.) 

provided by IFP to other City departments shall be tracked by 

Management and benchmarked against the data for comparable municipal 

electric utilities contained in the APPA Report. 

c. The Governing Body agrees to the following policies for the General Fund 

of the City of Idaho Falls transfers described above: 

i. The total budgeted General Fund transfers for each year shall not 

exceed the third quartile transfer percentage for (A) the Pacific 

Northwest region or (B) the revenue size class applicable to IFP, as 

shown in the comparison prepared by Management under b. above, 

whichever is greater. 

ii. The Governing Body may adjust the limit on General Fund 

transfers described in i. above, but only as a part of the annual 

budgetary process for IFP.  In considering any such adjustment, the 

Governing Body will consider (i) comparison to industry 

benchmarks and best practices (e.g., the most recent APPA 

Report), (ii) future IFP funding and reserve requirements (e.g., 

renewals and replacements and other capital projects, changes in or 

draws on existing reserves and related matters), (iii) the impact on 

retail rates, and (iv) whether such adjustment is consistent with the 

purposes and objectives of this Policy. 

iii. General Fund transfers will be made monthly and only from 

available amounts on deposit in the Electric Light Fund, and will 

not be made from other IFP funds or accounts. 

iv. The General Fund will not be operationally dependent on transfers 

from the Electric Light Fund. 

v. General Fund transfers be made only in compliance with all 

contractual and legal requirements. 

d. Payments or reimbursements made by IFP for the costs of billing, 

collection, administrative and general services provided by the City shall 

be based upon the City’s actual costs and overheads.  A breakdown of 

these costs will be provided to IFP for cost of service rate setting and 

annual budgeting needs, and these costs will be adjusted annually to 

reflect the City’s actual costs and overheads 

8. Considerations for Debt Issuances: 



-12- 

a. The City may from time to time issue bonds or incur debt to finance the 

cost of new power supply resources, transmission and distribution 

facilities and other resources, facilities and improvements necessary or 

desirable for the operations of IFP. 

b. Management of IFP shall have primary responsibility for evaluating and 

making recommendations to the Governing Body regarding proposed 

bond or other debt issuances, and will consider: 

i. Acceptable debt burden based on both historical and projected 

financial and operating position and comfortable financial margins 

post-debt issuance. 

ii. Whether any rate increases or changes would be necessary to 

support the payment of debt service. 

iii. Future needs for funds that would otherwise be committed to debt 

service, such as other anticipated capital improvements, take-or-

pay contractual obligations and other fixed costs.  

c. Revenue bonds shall be the preferred financing mechanism, although 

general obligation revenue bonds (such as those issued to finance the Gem 

State Project) may be considered in appropriate circumstances. 

D. Service Area 

1. The characteristics of IFP’s service area and its customer base are factors in the 

ratings assigned to IFP as they can affect load stability and customers’ ability to 

pay electric bills. 

2. Management will: 

a. Annually monitor and evaluate changes in, and the affect on IFP of (i) 

economic factors and characteristics of service area, (ii) customer profile, 

(iii) largest customers, (iv) population and load growth or decline, (v) 

kWh sales and (vi) income levels; and 

b. Anticipate changes (to extent possible) and take action, as appropriate, 

such as rate increases or adjustment of capacity margins, all with the 

objective of maintaining sound operating position notwithstanding 

changing service area or customer characteristics. 

IV. REPORTING 

A.  Management will provide an annual report to the Governing Body covering the 

operations and finances of IFP within 90 days of the close of each fiscal year. 



-13- 

1. The City Treasurer shall provide to the Governing Body and Management 

monthly financial reports regarding the operations, funds and accounts of IFP. 

2. Management shall provide to the Governing Body a summary quarterly report of 

financial operations, power supply trends, and such other matters as it deems 

appropriate, including matters described in B. below. 

B. In connection with the annual report, Management shall meet with the Governing Body 

to review and discuss: 

1. The results of operation and financial condition of IFP, including a report on the 

liquidity and coverage requirements targeted fund balances established by this 

Policy, 

2. Power supply and costs under the Bonneville Power Sales Agreement and other 

power supply agreements, and a summary of any wholesale power sales or 

purchase transactions, 

3. A review of the sufficiency of the current rates for System services, and a report 

on the operation of the power cost adjustment provision, 

4. The operating results and forecasts for the Bulb Turbine Project and the Gem 

State Project, 

5. The operating condition of the principal facilities of the System, as well as 

completed and projected renewals, replacements and capital additions and 

improvements, 

6. The current staffing level for IFP, any need for additional personnel, and a review 

of compensation levels and benchmarks for management and key employees, 

7. IFP’s compliance with applicable legal, regulatory and contractual requirements, 

8. Other factors are reasonably expected to have a potential impact on the future 

operations of IFP, 

 Management may utilize the assistance of power supply, accounting, financial, legal and 

other consultants as necessary to comply with this reporting requirement. 

V. CREDIT RATING 

IFP will maintain a credit rating from at least one nationally-recognized rating agency. 



-14- 

IDAHO FALLS POWER 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

I. INTRODUCTION 

This Risk Management Policy is a part of the Financial Stability and Creditworthiness 

Policy of Idaho Falls Power, and is adopted by the Governing Body in consideration of the 

following: 

A. The power supply available under to IFP under its Power Sales Agreement with 

Bonneville requires Management to enter into wholesale power transactions in order to: 

(i) purchase supplemental power supply during monthly or seasonal periods when the 

power supply available under the Power Sales Agreement and from IFP’s other power 

supply resources is less than the requirements of the customers served by the System (a 

“Seasonal Shortfall”); (ii) sell surplus power during monthly or seasonal periods when 

the power supply available under the Power Sales Agreement and from IFP’s other 

resources exceeds the requirements of the customers served by the System (a “Seasonal 

Surplus”); and (iii) purchase and sell power on a monthly, seasonal, annual or long-term 

basis in order to balance the System’s power supply resources and requirements (“Term 

Power”). 

B. These wholesale power transactions enable IFP to match its variable power supplies with 

System requirements and to maximize the benefits and reduce the costs of these power 

supplies.  These transactions also expose IFP to certain risks inherent in all wholesale 

power transactions, including price volatility, counterparty performance (reliability), 

counterparty credit and contract terms.  In addition, most or all of these wholesale power 

transactions will be forward contracts entered into on the basis of projections of power 

supply resources and requirements by IFP Management, and actual resources and 

requirements may differ materially from those projected. 

II. PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

A. This Risk Management Policy is adopted by the Governing Body to (i) establish policies 

and principles for wholesale power transactions entered into by IFP, (ii) authorize 

Management of IFP to enter into certain wholesale power transactions from time to time 

to meet and manage Seasonal Shortfalls and Seasonal Surpluses, (iii) require that certain 

wholesale power transactions be entered into only upon specific authorization by the 

Governing Body, (iv) establish procedures for the periodic review of wholesale power 

transactions that are entered into by IFP and (v) expressly prohibit certain activities. 

B. This Risk Management Policy has been adopted (i) in furtherance of the Mission 

Statement of Idaho Falls Power and is intended to promote the ability of IFP to provide 

reliable, low-cost power supply service to its customers, and (ii) pursuant to the City’s 

power and authority under the laws of the State of Idaho to own and operate the System, 



-15- 

to purchase, sell and exchange electric power and energy and to take all actions necessary 

for the prudent operation and management of the System. 

III. AUTHORIZATION OF TRANSACTIONS AND INSTRUMENTS 

A. General 

1. IFP will enter into wholesale power transactions only to the extent that such 

activities and instruments are consistent with, and in furtherance of, the prudent 

and businesslike operation of the System and its power supply requirements and 

resources.  Only existing and reasonably forecasted power supply requirements 

and resources will be the basis for any wholesale power transaction. 

2. The primary purpose of any wholesale power transaction entered into pursuant to 

this Risk Management Policy shall be to enable IFP to match its generating 

resources and wholesale power supply sources with the requirements of the 

customers served by the System.  In entering into any transaction, Management 

shall endeavor to reduce or mitigate price, reliability and counterparty risks.  Prior 

to entering into any transaction, Management will conduct an investigation of 

existing and forecasted market conditions and will seek to obtain competing price 

quotes. 

B. Seasonal Shortfalls and Surpluses 

1. Management of IFP shall have responsibility for supervising all wholesale power 

transactions and is hereby authorized to enter into wholesale power transactions 

from time to time to meet and manage a Seasonal Shortfall or a Seasonal Surplus.  

Such transactions may include power purchases, sales and exchanges; provided, 

however, that the transactions hereby authorized shall include only transactions 

for the physical delivery of power and, without the prior approval of the 

Governing Body, no transaction shall involve (i) a total cost to IFP greater than 

thirty percent of its annual power supply budget, (ii) a power purchase, sale or 

exchange exceeding 36 months in duration, (iii) a power purchase contract 

involving a generation facility that is not in operation or which involves 

significant construction risk or (iv) a single transaction or a set of related 

transactions that exceeds 150,000 MWh. 

2. Prior to entering into any wholesale power transaction involving the resale of 

power purchased from Bonneville, Management shall determine that such sale 

will not cause the City to violate any resale restrictions imposed by Bonneville. 

C. Contract Terms 

1. To the extent practical, Management shall seek to utilize industry-standard 

contracts (e.g., the WSPP Agreement) for all transactions entered into pursuant to 

this Risk Management Policy. 



-16- 

2. To the extent that any contract contains provisions requiring the posting of 

collateral by IFP or exposes IFP to the payment of marked-to-market damages 

upon any early termination of the contract, Management shall consult with legal 

counsel and inform the governing body. 

D. Counterparties 

1. Wholesale power transactions shall be entered into with only those counterparties 

that Management determines have sufficient physical and financial resources to 

perform their obligations under the transaction. 

2. In making such determination, Management shall take into account the 

counterparty’s published credit ratings, other available information regarding the 

counterparty including financial statements, the counterparty’s past performance 

under similar transactions, the size, duration and any protective provisions in the 

proposed transaction, and other factors deemed relevant by Management. 

3. To the extent deemed necessary by Management to protect the interests of IFP, 

counterparties shall be required to post collateral to secure their payment and 

performance obligations to IFP. 

E. UAMPS Power Pool and Power Exchange 

1. UAMPS operates a Power Pool and a Power Exchange through which it 

purchases and sells power for the account of its members and facilitates power 

purchases and sales among its members.  Subject to the provisions of this Risk 

Management Policy, Management may from time to time enter into wholesale 

power transactions through the UAMPS Power Pool and Power Exchange. 

F. Term Power 

1. All wholesale power transactions for the acquisition of Term Power shall be either 

a. approved by the Governing Body, or 

b. entered into pursuant to a Term Power supply plan approved by the 

Governing Body.   

2. All transactions involving a participation agreement for the ownership and 

operation of joint electric facilities shall be consistent with the provisions of 

Section 50-342A, Idaho Code, as amended. 

IV. LIMITATION ON SOURCE OF PAYMENT 

A. Special Obligations 



-17- 

1. All payments and expenses incurred by the City as a result of any wholesale 

power transaction by it shall constitute an operating expense of the System and a 

cost of purchased electric power and energy and shall in no event constitute a 

general obligation liability or indebtedness of the City under the laws of the State 

of Idaho. 

2. Any such payments and expenses shall be a special obligation of the City, payable 

solely out of amounts available in the Electric Light Fund (or, as described below, 

the Rate Stabilization Fund) and shall be within the amount appropriated for 

power supply expense of IFP for the then-current fiscal year and the available 

amounts on deposit in the Rate Stabilization Fund. 

3. Any receipts and income realized by the City as a result of any wholesale power 

transaction shall be deposited into the Electric Light Fund or the Rate 

Stabilization Fund. 

B. Rate Stabilization Fund 

1. In the event that the Electric Light (Revenue) Fund is not sufficient to pay 

amounts owed under any wholesale power transaction, amounts on deposit in the 

Rate Stabilization Fund shall be used to make up any shortfall. 

2. Upon the approval of the Governing Body, amounts on deposit in the Rate 

Stabilization Fund may also be used or pledged to meet IFP’s obligations under 

any wholesale power contract, including any collateral posting requirement. 

V. PROHIBITED TRANSACTIONS 

A. Financial Transactions Not Authorized. 

1. Financially-settled transactions are not authorized under this Risk Management 

Policy. 

2. Any commodity price swap or hedge or other transaction settled in cash (rather 

than physical power) shall require the prior approval of the Governing Body. 

B. Speculation Prohibited. 

1. The use of any wholesale power transaction for the purpose of speculating on 

future prices of electric power and energy or for the purpose of trading solely to 

generate profits is prohibited. 

2. No officer or employee who exercises or has authority to exercise discretionary 

authority with regard to any wholesale power transaction shall directly or 

indirectly own or trade in, for his or her personal account, any power supply, risk 

management or financial contract relating to electric power and energy; provided 



-18- 

that this prohibition shall not extend to personal investments of any such officer 

or employee that are made in compliance with the provisions of the Ethics in 

Government Act of 1990, Title 74, Chapter 4, Idaho Code, as amended. 

VI. REPORTING 

 Management shall report monthly to the Governing Body with respect to all new Term 

Power transactions entered into by IFP. 



 

 S-1 

SCHEDULE I 

 

POWER COST ADJUSTMENT (PCA) PROVISION 

Quarterly:  Calculate the difference between last quarters’ net power supply costs vs. net power 

supply budget and transfer this amount of money to (from) the Rate Stabilization Fund from (to) 

the Electric Light Fund (i.e., the general working cash fund).  Such transfers will be made after 

each quarterly report is presented to and approved by the Governing Body, with a final true-up 

transfer at the end of each fiscal year. 

Annually:  The following formula shall be used to calculate the PCA for the next years PCA 

rate: 

 

Lesser of the 

following values 

Rate Stabilization Fund (SF) 

minus Rate SF Benchmark 

multiplied by 75% = PCA 
Net Power Supply (PS) Budget 

minus Net PS Actual 

Power Supply Revenue Actual 

minus PS Revenue Budget 

Additional factors: 

1. No quarterly PCA adjustment shall exceed $4 million. 

2. The total annual PCA adjustment shall not exceed $4 million. 

3. There shall be no negative PCA, resulting in a customer charge, when the Rate 

Stabilization Fund is greater than ninety percent of the Rate Stabilization 

benchmark. 

4. When the Rate Stabilization Fund is less than fifty percent of Rate Stabilization 

benchmark, the restrictions listed in 1. and 2. Above shall not apply. 

After the PCA is calculated for the next succeeding rate period, any additional funds in the Rate 

Stabilization Fund above the benchmark will be transferred and/or used for one of the following: 

reduce base rates or deposit to a capital improvement fund or Electric Light Fund (for general 

working cash). 

 



 
Resolution – Adopting the City of Idaho Falls Power Financial Stability and Creditworthiness Policy Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A 
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF IDAHO,                                      
ADOPTING THE IDAHO FALLS POWER FINANCIAL STABILITY 
AND CREDITWORTHINESS POLICY AND PROVIDING THAT 
THIS RESOLUTION BE EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE, 
APPROVAL, AND PUBLICATION ACCORDING TO LAW. 
 

WHEREAS, this policy combines and restructures the Risk Management and Rate Stabilization Policy 
and the T&D Capital Reserve Fund Resolution into one comprehensive policy; and, 
 
WHEREAS, an updated policy is necessary given that the previous policies were established to comply 
with bond ordinances that are no longer relevant since Idaho Falls Power fully retired its debt; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the new policy establishes a framework consistent with credit rating agency requirements 
that will ensure sustained strong financial condition of the utility. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Council hereby adopts the attached Idaho Falls Power Financial Stability and Creditworthiness 
Policy. 
 
 

ADOPTED and effective this ____ day of February, 2016. 
 

 
 
      CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Rebecca L. Noah Casper, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Resolution – Adopting the City of Idaho Falls Power Financial Stability and Creditworthiness Policy Page 2 of 2 

 
STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    ) ss: 
County of Bonneville ) 
 
I, KATHY HAMPTON, CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY: 
 

That the above and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Resolution entitled, “A 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IDAHO FALLS, IDAHO, A MUNICIPAL 
CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF IDAHO, ADOPTING THE IDAHO FALLS 
POWER FINANCIAL STABILITY AND CREDITWORTHINESS POLICY AND 
PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION BE EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE, 
APPROVAL, AND PUBLICATION ACCORDING TO LAW.” 

 
 

      _______________________________ 
      Kathy Hampton, City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 







































































































































 

    IDAHO FALLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

DATE: FEBRUARY 19, 2016  
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL       

FROM: DAVE HANNEMAN, FIRE CHIEF 

RE: COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM/PURCHASE REQUISITION APPROVAL FOR NEW 
CAD/RMS SYSTEM 

Mayor and Council Members, 

The Fire Department respectfully requests that the requisition to reimburse the Bonneville County Sheriff’s 
Office for the Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system and Records Management System (RMS) be 
placed on the consent agenda at the February 25th, 2016 Council meeting. 

During the FY 2016 budget process an amount of $124,349.72 was approved by City Council as the Fire 
Department’s share of the expenses for replacing the current Computer Aided Dispatch and Records 
Management systems. Work has been ongoing to complete this project, and the Bonneville County 
Sheriff’s Office has paid for the project to date. The Sheriff’s Office has submitted an invoice to the Idaho 
Falls Fire Department for our share. 

ACTION: The Idaho Falls Fire Department respectfully requests that the City Council approve paying the 
invoice to the Bonneville County Sheriff’s Office in the amount of $124,349.72. 

 
 
Dave Hanneman 
Fire Chief 

 


	2-25-2015 Council Meeting Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes
	Regular Agenda
	5.A.1. CDSD-Sign Code Ordinance
	5.B.1. IFP-Financial Stability and Creditworthiness Policy
	5.C.1. PW-ITD Agreement-Holmes Ave and First St Project
	5.C.2. PW-ITD Agreement-Bellin Rd and Grandview Dr Project
	5.C.3. PW-WWTP Agreement and Task Order
	5.C.4. PW-ROW Vacation Request
	5.D.1. Fire-Requisition Approval

